

CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA

BETWEEN

COUNTY OF ORANGE

AND

COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAMS, INC.

FOR

DISPUTE RESOLUTIONS PROGRAMS ACT (DRPA) SERVICES
FUNDING SOURCE: 100% CIVIL FILING FEES



Table of Contents

Table of Contents.....	2
Recitals.....	5

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Scope of CONTRACT	6
2. Term of CONTRACT	6
3. Contingency of Funds.....	6
4. Maximum Obligation.....	6
5. Changes/Amendments/Extra Work.....	6
6. Breach of Contract.....	7
7. Condition Affecting Work	7
8. Conflict of Interest	7
9. Consulting Contract – Follow-On Work	7
10. COUNTY Project Manager	8
11. SUBRECIPIENT Project Manager and Key Personnel	8
12. SUBRECIPIENT Personnel	8
13. Title to Data	8
14. EDD Independent SUBRECIPIENT Reporting Requirements.....	8
15. COUNTY of Orange Child Support Enforcement	9
16. Licenses	9
17. Disputes – Contract	9
18. Gratuities	10
19. Termination Orderly.....	10
20. News/Information Release.....	10
21. Notices	10
22. Ownership of Documents	11
23. Precedence	11
24. Errors and Omissions	11
25. Non-Supplantation of Funds	12
26. Satisfactory Work	12
27. Access and Records.....	12
28. Signature in Counterparts.....	13
29. Reports/Meetings	13
30. Subcontracting	13

PROJECT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

31. Debarment	14
32. Lobbying.....	14
33. Fraud.....	14
34. Fiscal Accountability	14
35. Performance Standards.....	15
36. Payments	15
37. Modification of Budget	16
38. Annual Audit.....	16
39. Budget.....	16
40. Match	16
41. Nondiscrimination and Compliance Provisions	17
42. Instructors	17
43. Publication.....	18

44. Drug Free Workplace	18
-------------------------------	----

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. Governing Law and Venue	19
B. Entire Contract	19
C. Amendments	19
D. Taxes "Intentionally Left Blank"	19
E. Delivery	19
F. Acceptance/Payment	19
G. Warranty	19
H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement	19
I. Assignment or Sub-Contracting	20
J. Non-Discrimination	20
K. Termination	20
L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver	20
M. Remedies Not Exclusive	20
N. Independent SUBRECIPIENT	20
O. Performance	20
P. Insurance	21
Q. Bills and Liens "Intentionally Left Blank"	24
R. Changes	24
S. Change of Ownership	24
T. Force Majeure	24
U. Confidentiality	24
V. Compliance with Law	24
W. Freight (F.O.B) "Intentionally Left Blank"	24
X. Pricing "Intentionally Left Blank"	24
Y. "Intentionally Left Blank"	24
Z. Terms and Conditions	25
AA. Headings	25
BB. Severability	25
CC. Calendar Days	25
DD. Attorney Fees	25
EE. Interpretation	25
FF. Authority "Intentionally Left Blank"	25
GG. Employee Eligibility Verification	25
HH. Indemnification	25
II. Audits/Inspections	26
Signature Page	27

ATTACHMENTS / EXHIBITS

Attachment A-~~3~~4 – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements

Attachment B-~~4~~2 – Payment/Compensation

Attachment C-~~6~~7 – Budget

Attachment D-~~5~~6 – Staffing Plan

Attachment E-~~3~~4 - Performance Standards

Exhibit 1 – Child Support Enforcement Certification

Exhibit 2 – Drug Free Workplace Certification

Exhibit 3 – Debarment and Suspension Certification

Exhibit 4 – Certificate Regarding Lobbying

Exhibit 5 – Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying

This agreement No. 17-28-0001-DRPA, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACT" is made and entered into as of the date fully executed by and between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California; hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and Community Service Programs, Inc., a California for non-profit organization, with a place of business at 1221 East Dyer Road, Suite 120, Santa Ana CA 92705-5634, hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT," with COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT sometimes referred to as "PARTY", or collectively as "PARTIES."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, SUBRECIPIENT responded to a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 for Dispute Resolutions Programs Act (DRPA) funds received by the COUNTY pursuant to California Business and Professions Code Section 465 to 471.5 and California Code of Regulations ("CCR") Title 16, Division 36; and

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIPIENT represented that its proposed services shall meet or exceed the requirements and specifications of the RFP; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY Board of Supervisors has authorized the OC Community Resources Director or his designee to enter into a CONTRACT for Dispute Resolution Programs Act services to engage SUBRECIPIENT to carry out certain program services and activities for Fiscal Year 2017-20 and Fiscal Year 2020-21; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES mutually agree as follows:

Terms and Conditions:

1. Scope of CONTRACT:

This CONTRACT specifies the Contractual terms and conditions by which the COUNTY will procure services from SUBRECIPIENT as further detailed in the Scope of Services, identified and incorporated herein by this reference as Attachment "A-~~34~~".

2. Term of CONTRACT:

This CONTRACT shall commence on October 1, 2017 and continue through June 30, ~~2020-2021~~ for ~~two-three~~ (23) years and nine (9) months, unless otherwise terminated by the COUNTY. This CONTRACT may be renewed one (1) additional ~~two-one~~ (21) year term under the same terms, conditions, and scope of services by mutual written agreement of both PARTIES. The County does not have to give reason if it elects not to renew. Renewal periods may be subject to approval by the County of Orange Board of Supervisors. At no time may this CONTRACT exceed five (5) years from the initial CONTRACT term of the RFP cycle.

3. Contingency of Funds:

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that funding or portions of funding for this CONTRACT may be contingent upon receipt of funds from, and/or obligation of funds by, Federal, State of California and/or local funds to COUNTY; and inclusion of sufficient funding for the services hereunder in the Budget approved by COUNTY's Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year covered by this CONTRACT. If such approval, funding or appropriations are not forthcoming, or are otherwise limited, COUNTY may immediately terminate or modify this CONTRACT without penalty.

4. Maximum Obligation:

The total Maximum Obligation of COUNTY to the SUBRECIPIENT for the cost of services provided in accordance with this CONTRACT is ~~\$725,000~~ \$1,005,000, with individual Maximum Obligation budgets for each Fiscal Year (FY 9/1/17 – 6/30/18 in the amount of \$187,500; FY 7/1/18 – 6/30/19 in the amount of \$257,500; FY 7/1/19 – 6/30/20 in the amount of \$280,000 and FY 7/1/20 – 6/30/21 in the amount of \$280,000) as further detailed in the Budget, identified and incorporated herein by this reference as Attachment "C-~~67~~".

5. Changes/Amendments/Extra Work:

The SUBRECIPIENT shall make no changes to this CONTRACT without the COUNTY's written consent. In the event that there are new or unforeseen requirements, the COUNTY has the discretion with the SUBRECIPIENT's concurrence, to make changes at any time without changing the scope or price of the CONTRACT.

If COUNTY-initiated changes or changes in laws or government regulations affect price, the SUBRECIPIENT's ability to deliver services, or the project schedule, the SUBRECIPIENT will give COUNTY written notice no later ten (10) days from the date the law or regulation went into effect or the date the change was proposed and SUBRECIPIENT was notified of the change. Such changes shall be agreed to in writing and incorporated into a CONTRACT amendment. Said amendment shall be issued by the COUNTY-assigned CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, shall require the mutual consent of all PARTIES, and may be subject to approval by the COUNTY Board of Supervisors. Nothing herein shall prohibit the SUBRECIPIENT from proceeding with the work as originally set forth or as previously amended in this CONTRACT.

All extra work/services are by mutual consent of all PARTIES and may be subject to the approval of the County of Orange Board of Supervisors.

6. Breach of CONTRACT:

The failure of the SUBRECIPIENT to comply with any of the provisions, covenants or conditions of this CONTRACT shall be a material breach of this CONTRACT. In such event the COUNTY may, and in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this CONTRACT:

- a. Terminate the CONTRACT immediately, pursuant to Paragraph K herein;
- b. Afford the SUBRECIPIENT written notice of the breach and ten calendar days or such shorter time that may be specified in this CONTRACT within which to cure the breach;
- c. Discontinue payment to the Contactor for and during the period in which the SUBRECIPIENT is in breach; and
- d. Offset against any monies billed by the SUBRECIPIENT but yet unpaid by the COUNTY those monies disallowed pursuant to the above.

7. Conditions Affecting Work:

The SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for taking all steps reasonably necessary, to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under this CONTRACT; and to know the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost thereof. Any failure by the SUBRECIPIENT to do so will not relieve SUBRECIPIENT from responsibility for successfully performing the work without additional cost to the COUNTY. The COUNTY assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning the nature, location(s) or general conditions made by any of its officers or agents prior to the execution of this CONTRACT, unless such understanding or representations by the COUNTY are expressly stated in the CONTRACT.

8. Conflict of Interest:

- A. COUNTY Personnel: The County of Orange Board of Supervisors policy prohibits its employees from engaging in activities involving a conflict of interest. The SUBRECIPIENT shall not, during the period of this CONTRACT, employ any COUNTY employee for any purpose.
- B. SUBRECIPIENT's Personnel: The SUBRECIPIENT shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the best interests of the COUNTY. This obligation shall apply to the SUBRECIPIENT; the SUBRECIPIENT's employees, agents, and relatives; sub-tier contractors; and third parties associated with accomplishing work and services hereunder. The SUBRECIPIENT's efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing precautions to prevent its employees or agents from making, receiving, providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to appear to influence individuals to act contrary to the best interests of the COUNTY.

9. Consulting Contract – Follow-On Work:

No person or firm or subsidiary thereof who has been awarded a consulting services contract or a contract which includes a consulting component may be awarded a contract for the provision of services, the delivery of goods or supplies, or the provision of any other

related action which is required, suggested, or otherwise deemed appropriate as an end product of the consulting services contract. Therefore, any consultant that contracts with a COUNTY department to develop a feasibility study or to provide formal recommendations is precluded from contracting for any work recommended in the study or included in the recommendations.

10. COUNTY Project Manager:

The County shall appoint a Project Manager to act as liaison between the COUNTY and the SUBRECIPIENT during the term of this CONTRACT. The Project Manager shall coordinate the activities of the COUNTY staff assigned to work with the SUBRECIPIENT.

11. SUBRECIPIENT's Project Manager and Key Personnel:

SUBRECIPIENT shall appoint a Project Manager to direct the SUBRECIPIENT's efforts in fulfilling SUBRECIPIENT's obligations under this CONTRACT. The name of the Project Manager shall be provided to the COUNTY. If there is a Project Management change the SUBRECIPIENT will notify the COUNTY in writing prior to the change being made.

The SUBRECIPIENT's Project Manager and Key Personnel shall be assigned to this CONTRACT for the duration of this CONTRACT and shall diligently pursue all work and services to meet the project timelines. SUBRECIPIENT's Key Personnel are those individuals who report directly to the SUBRECIPIENT's Project Manager.

12. SUBRECIPIENT Personnel:

The SUBRECIPIENT warrants that all persons employed to provide service under this CONTRACT have satisfactory past work records indicating their ability to accept the kind of responsibility anticipated under this CONTRACT. SUBRECIPIENT's employees assigned to this project must meet character standards as demonstrated by background investigation and reference checks, coordinated by the COUNTY as needed.

13. Title to Data:

All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the COUNTY data files or any COUNTY medium furnished to the SUBRECIPIENT in the performance of this CONTRACT will at all times remain the property of the COUNTY. Such data or information may not be used or copied for direct or indirect use by the SUBRECIPIENT after completion or termination of this CONTRACT without the express written consent of the COUNTY. All materials, documents, data or information, including copies, must be returned to the COUNTY at the end of this CONTRACT.

All PARTIES to the CONTRACT acknowledge that the COUNTY shall maintain ownership and control of all data files and the related indexes and pointers to those data files.

14. EDD Independent SUBRECIPIENT Reporting Requirements:

The County of Orange is required to file federal Form 1099-Misc for services received from a "service provider" to whom the COUNTY pays \$600 or more or with whom the COUNTY enters into a CONTRACT for \$600 or more within a single calendar year. The purpose of this reporting requirement is to increase child support collection by helping to locate parents who are delinquent in their child support obligations.

The term "service provider" is defined in California Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.8, subparagraph B.2 as "an individual who is not an employee of the service recipient for California purposes and who received compensation or executes a CONTRACT for services performed for that service recipient within or without the state." The term is further defined by the California Employment Development Department to refer specifically to independent SUBRECIPIENTS. An independent SUBRECIPIENT is defined as "an

individual who is not an employee of the ... government entity for California purposes and who receives compensation or executes a CONTRACT for services performed for that ... government entity either in or outside of California.”

15. County Of Orange Child Support Enforcement:

In order to comply with the child support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange, within ten (10) days of award of CONTRACT, the selected SUBRECIPIENT agrees to furnish to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR:

- A. In the case of an individual SUBRECIPIENT, his/her name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address;
- B. In the case of a SUBRECIPIENT doing business in a form other than as an individual, the name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of ten (10) percent or more in the contracting entity;
- C. A certification that the SUBRECIPIENT has fully complied with all applicable federal and State reporting requirements regarding its employees; and
- D. A certification that the SUBRECIPIENT has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to so comply.

Failure of the SUBRECIPIENT to timely submit the data and/or certifications required may result in the CONTRACT being awarded to another SUBRECIPIENT. In the event a CONTRACT has been issued, failure of the SUBRECIPIENT to comply with all federal, state, and local reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of the CONTRACT. Failure to cure such breach within ten (10) calendar days of notice from the COUNTY shall constitute grounds for termination of the CONTRACT.

16. Licenses:

SUBRECIPIENT and its subcontractors, if any, shall, at all time during the term of this CONTRACT, maintain in full force and effect such licenses or permits as may be required by the State of California or any other government entity. SUBRECIPIENT and his subcontractors, if any, shall strictly adhere to, and obey, all governmental rules and regulations now in effect or as subsequently enacted or modified, as promulgated by any local, state, or federal governmental entity.

17. Disputes – CONTRACT:

- A. The PARTIES shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If the dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this CONTRACT is not disposed of in a reasonable period of time by the SUBRECIPIENT and the COUNTY, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR by way of the following process:
 - 1. The SUBRECIPIENT shall submit to the department assigned CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of any dispute between the PARTIES arising under, related to, or involving this CONTRACT, unless the COUNTY, on its own initiative, has already rendered such a final decision.
 - 2. The SUBRECIPIENT's written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if such demand involves a cost adjustment to the

CONTRACT, the SUBRECIPIENT shall include with the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating that the demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the CONTRACT adjustment for which the SUBRECIPIENT believes the COUNTY is liable.

- B. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this CONTRACT, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees to diligently proceed with the provision of services under this CONTRACT. The SUBRECIPIENT's failure to diligently proceed shall be considered a material breach of this CONTRACT.

Any final decision of the COUNTY shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and shall be signed by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. If the COUNTY fails to render a decision within ninety (90) days after receipt of the SUBRECIPIENT's demand, it shall be deemed a final decision adverse to the SUBRECIPIENT's contentions. Nothing in this Paragraph 17 shall be construed as affecting the COUNTY's right to terminate the CONTRACT for cause as stated in Paragraph K "Termination," herein.

18. Gratuities:

The SUBRECIPIENT warrants that no gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the SUBRECIPIENT or any agent or representative of the SUBRECIPIENT to any officer or employee of the COUNTY with a view toward securing the CONTRACT or securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the performance of the CONTRACT. For breach or violation of this warranty, the COUNTY shall have the right to terminate the CONTRACT, either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by the COUNTY in procuring on the open market any services which the SUBRECIPIENT agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by the SUBRECIPIENT. The rights and remedies of the COUNTY provided in this Paragraph 18 shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under the CONTRACT.

19. Termination – Orderly:

After receipt of a termination notice from the County of Orange, the SUBRECIPIENT shall submit to the COUNTY a termination claim, if applicable. Such claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than sixty (60) days from the effective date of the termination, unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the COUNTY upon written request of the SUBRECIPIENT. Upon termination COUNTY agrees to pay the SUBRECIPIENT for all services performed prior to termination which meet the requirements of the CONTRACT, provided, however, that such compensation plus previously paid compensation shall not exceed the total compensation set forth in the CONTRACT. Upon termination or other expiration of this CONTRACT, each PARTY shall promptly return to the other PARTY all papers, materials, and other properties of the other held by each for purposes of execution of the CONTRACT. In addition, each Party will assist the other PARTY in orderly termination of this CONTRACT and the transfer of all aspects, tangible and intangible, as may be necessary for the orderly, non-disruptive business continuation of each PARTY.

20. News/Information Release:

The SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will not issue any news releases in connection with either the award of this CONTRACT or any subsequent amendment of or effort under this agreement without first obtaining review and written approval of said news releases from the COUNTY.

21. Notices:

Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, except through the course of the PARTIES routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the parties hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

For COUNTY:

OC Community Resources
Community Investment Division
PROJECT MANAGER
1300 S. Grand Ave. Bldg. B, 3rd Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92705-4407
Attn: Reza Zargham Program Manager

OC Community Resources
Contract Development and Management
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR
1501 East St. Andrew Place, 1st Floor
Santa Ana, CA 92705-4930
Attn: Elsa Rivera Contract Administrator

For SUBRECIPIENT:

Community Service Programs, Inc.
Dispute Resolution Services
Ronnetta J. Johnson
Executive Director
1221 East Dyer Road, Suite 120
Santa Ana, CA 92705- 5634

22. Ownership of Documents:

The COUNTY has permanent ownership of all directly connected and derivative materials produced under this CONTRACT by the SUBRECIPIENT. All documents, reports and other incidental or derivative work or materials furnished hereunder shall become and remains the sole property of the COUNTY and may be used by the COUNTY as it may require without additional cost to the COUNTY. None of the documents, reports and other incidental or derivative work or furnished materials shall be used by the SUBRECIPIENT without the express written consent of the COUNTY.

- 23. Precedence:** The CONTRACT documents consist of this CONTRACT and its exhibits and attachments. In the event of a conflict between or among the CONTRACT documents, the order of precedence shall be the provisions of the main body of this CONTRACT, i.e., those provisions set forth in the articles and paragraphs of this CONTRACT, and then the exhibits and attachments.

24. Errors and Omissions:

All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by SUBRECIPIENT shall be complete and shall be carefully checked by the professional(s) identified by SUBRECIPIENT as Project Manager and Key Personnel attached hereto, prior to submission to the COUNTY. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that COUNTY review is discretionary and SUBRECIPIENT shall not assume that the COUNTY will discover errors and/or omissions. If the COUNTY discovers any errors or omissions prior to approving SUBRECIPIENT's reports, files and other written documents, the reports, files or

documents will be returned to SUBRECIPIENT for correction. Should the COUNTY or others discover errors or omissions in the reports, files or other written documents submitted by SUBRECIPIENT after COUNTY approval thereof, COUNTY approval of SUBRECIPIENT's reports, files or documents shall not be used as a defense by SUBRECIPIENT in any action between the COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT, and the reports, files or documents will be returned to SUBRECIPIENT for correction.

25. Non-Supplantation of Funds:

SUBRECIPIENT shall not supplant any Federal, State, or COUNTY funds intended for the purposes of this CONTRACT with any funds made available under this CONTRACT. SUBRECIPIENT shall not claim reimbursement from COUNTY for, or apply sums received from COUNTY with respect to, that portion of its obligations which have been paid by another source of revenue. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it shall not use funds received pursuant to this CONTRACT, either directly or indirectly, as a contribution or compensation for the purposes of obtaining Federal, State, or COUNTY funds under any Federal, State, or COUNTY program without prior written approval from the COUNTY.

26. Satisfactory Work:

Services rendered hereunder are to be performed to the written satisfaction of COUNTY. COUNTY's staff will interpret all reports and determine the quality, acceptability and progress of the services rendered.

27. Access and Records:

- A. COUNTY, the State of California and the United States Government and/or their representatives, shall have access, for purposes of monitoring, auditing, and examining, to SUBRECIPIENT's activities, books, documents and papers (including computer records and emails) and to records of SUBRECIPIENT's subcontractors, consultants, contracted employees, bookkeepers, accountants, employees and participants related to this CONTRACT. SUBRECIPIENT shall insert this condition in each CONTRACT between SUBRECIPIENT and a subcontractor that is pursuant to this CONTRACT shall require the subcontractor to agree to this condition. Such departments or representatives shall have the right to make excerpts, transcripts and photocopies of such records and to schedule on site monitoring at their discretion. Monitoring activities also may include, but are not limited to, questioning employees and participants and entering any premises or onto any site in which any of the services or activities funded hereunder are conducted or in which any of the records of SUBRECIPIENT are kept. SUBRECIPIENT shall make available its books, documents, papers, financial records, etc., within three (3) days after receipt of written demand by DIRECTOR which shall be deemed received upon date of sending. In the event SUBRECIPIENT does not make the above referenced documents available within the COUNTY of Orange, California, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to pay all necessary and reasonable expenses incurred by COUNTY, or COUNTY's designee, in conducting any audit at the location where said records and books of account are maintained.
- B. Records Retention. All accounting records and evidence pertaining to all costs of SUBRECIPIENT and all documents related to this CONTRACT shall be kept available at SUBRECIPIENT's office or place of business for the duration of this CONTRACT and thereafter for four (4) years after completion of an audit. Records which relate to: (1) complaints, claims, administrative proceedings or litigation arising out of the performance of this CONTRACT; or (2) costs and expenses of

this CONTRACT to which COUNTY or any other governmental department takes exception, shall be retained beyond the four (4) years until final resolution or disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

- C. Liability. SUBRECIPIENT shall pay to COUNTY the full amount of COUNTY's liability to the State or Federal government or any department thereof resulting from any disallowance or other audit exceptions to the extent that such liability is attributable to SUBRECIPIENT's failure to perform under this CONTRACT.

28. Signature in Counterparts:

The PARTIES agree that separate copies of this CONTRACT and/or electronic signatures and handwritten signatures may be signed by each of the PARTIES, and this CONTRACT will have the same force and effect as if the Original had been signed by all the PARTIES.

29. Reports/Meetings:

The SUBRECIPIENT shall develop reports and any other relevant documents necessary to complete the services and requirements as set forth in this CONTRACT. The COUNTY and the SUBRECIPIENT will meet on reasonable notice to discuss the SUBRECIPIENT's performance and progress under this CONTRACT. If requested, the SUBRECIPIENT and other project personnel shall attend all meetings. The SUBRECIPIENT shall provide such information that is requested by the COUNTY for the purpose of monitoring progress under this CONTRACT.

30. Subcontracting:

No performance of this CONTRACT or any portion thereof may be assigned or subcontracted by the SUBRECIPIENT without the express written consent of the COUNTY. Any attempt by the SUBRECIPIENT to assign or subcontract any performance of this CONTRACT without the express written consent of the COUNTY shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this CONTRACT.

In the event that the SUBRECIPIENT is authorized by the COUNTY to subcontract, this CONTRACT shall prevail and the terms of the subcontract shall incorporate by reference and not conflict with the terms of this CONTRACT. In the manner in which the COUNTY expects to receive services, the COUNTY shall look to the SUBRECIPIENT for performance and not deal directly with any subcontractor. All matters related to this CONTRACT shall be handled by the SUBRECIPIENT with the COUNTY; the COUNTY will have no direct contact with the subcontractor in matters related to the performance of this CONTRACT. All work must meet the approval of the COUNTY.

Program Specific Terms and Conditions:

31. Debarment:

SUBRECIPIENT shall execute and abide by the Debarment & Suspension Certification, attached hereto as Exhibit "3" and incorporated herein by this reference, and by so doing declares that it is not debarred or suspended or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal/State assistance programs in accordance with 29 C.F.R. Part 98.

32. Lobbying:

- A. SUBRECIPIENT shall execute and abide by the terms of the "Certification Regarding Lobbying," which is attached hereto as Exhibit "4" and incorporated herein by this reference. SUBRECIPIENT shall complete and immediately forward to the COUNTY the "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "5" and incorporated herein by this reference, if SUBRECIPIENT, or any person, firm or corporation acting on SUBRECIPIENT's behalf, engaged or engages in lobbying any federal office, employee, elected official or department with respect to this CONTRACT or funds to be received by SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this CONTRACT.
- B. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that the funds provided herein shall not be used to promote, directly or indirectly, any political party, political candidate or political activity, except as permitted by law.

33. Fraud:

SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately report all suspected or known instances and facts concerning possible fraud, abuse or criminal activity under this CONTRACT.

34. Fiscal Accountability:

- A. SUBRECIPIENT shall establish and maintain a sound financial management system, based upon generally accepted accounting principles. SUBRECIPIENT's system shall provide fiscal control and accounting procedures that will include the following:
 - 1) Information pertaining to sub-grant and CONTRACT awards, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, and income;
 - 2) Effective internal controls to safeguard assets and assure their proper use;
 - 3) A comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts for each sub grant and CONTRACT;
 - 4) Source documentation to support accounting records; and
 - 5) Proper charging of costs and cost allocation.
- B. SUBRECIPIENT's Records. SUBRECIPIENT's records shall be sufficient to:
 - 1) Permit preparation of required reports;
 - 2) Permit tracking of funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that funds have not been used in violation of the applicable restrictions on the use of such funds; and
 - 3) Permit the tracking of program income, or profits earned, and any costs incurred (such as stand-in costs) that are otherwise allowable except for funding limitation.

- C. **Costs Charged.** Cost shall be charged to this CONTRACT only in accordance with the applicable portions of sections 465-471.5 of the California Business and Professions Code, Title 16, Chapter 36 of California Code of Regulations.

35. **Performance Standards:**

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with and adhere to the performance accountability standards and general program requirements described in the DRPA and applicable regulations and the activity levels to be utilized by COUNTY for program evaluation and monitoring included, but are not limited to those listed in the Performance Standards which is attached hereto as Attachment "E-34."

SUBRECIPIENT shall abide by all terms and conditions imposed and required by this CONTRACT and shall comply with all subsequent revisions, modifications and administrative and statutory changes made by the COUNTY or State.

SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it is responsible for and guarantees performance of the entire program activities specified in Attachment "E-34." SUBRECIPIENT further agrees that lack of compliance with Attachment "E-34" may, in addition to those remedies as provided herein, be grounds for COUNTY to re-adjust the level of payment otherwise provided under this CONTRACT.

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide training and orientation to all persons who will provide dispute resolution services pursuant to this CONTRACT, in accordance with 16 CCR Section 3622. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide to COUNTY, within 30 days of each such person's satisfactory completion of said orientation and training, written verification of the dates and times at which said training was attended and completed.

SUBRECIPIENT shall prepare and provide to all persons indicating an intent to utilize any program funded by this CONTRACT a written statement in accordance with Business and Professions Code Section 467.3. SUBRECIPIENT shall submit to COUNTY a copy of said statement within 60 days after this CONTRACT is executed. SUBRECIPIENT shall make changes in such statement as directed by COUNTY.

36. **Payments:**

SUBRECIPIENT agrees that any and all funds received under this CONTRACT shall be disbursed on or before June 30, 2018, and that any and all funds remaining as of June 30, 2018, which have not been disbursed shall be returned by SUBRECIPIENT to COUNTY within thirty (30) days of the expiration or earlier termination of the CONTRACT in accordance with Paragraph K. No expense of SUBRECIPIENT will be reimbursed by COUNTY if incurred after June 30, 2018.

Upon the effective date of this CONTRACT, COUNTY shall make payment to SUBRECIPIENT in accordance with the following payment schedule:

- A. Monthly Payments: Beginning August 1, 2017 upon receipt and approval by OC Community Resources – OC Community Services/Community Investment Division, of SUBRECIPIENT's invoice showing prior month(s) actual expenditures, COUNTY shall make monthly reimbursement payments based on SUBRECIPIENT's invoice so long as the total payments under this CONTRACT do not exceed the contract maximum obligation.
- B. COUNTY Discretion: At the sole discretion of COUNTY, payments to SUBRECIPIENT may be made more frequently than monthly, but such payments

shall always be in arrears and not in advance of the provision of services by SUBRECIPIENT.

- C. Invoices: SUBRECIPIENT shall provide monthly invoices by the 20th day following the month being reported. Invoices shall show the most up to date costs chargeable to the program(s) referenced in this CONTRACT. If SUBRECIPIENT expenditures for any program referenced in this CONTRACT fall below 20% of planned expenditures for any cumulative period commencing from the beginning.

Of the term of this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT may be subject to a reduction in funding. No payments will be authorized if any preceding month's reports or invoices have not been received.

37. Modification of Budget:

Upon written approval of COUNTY, SUBRECIPIENT shall have the authority to transfer allocated program funds from one category of the overall program budget to any other category of the overall program budget, as long as the amount of the total CONTRACT is not increased and the basic goals and objectives of the program are not altered. No such transfer may be made without the express prior written approval of the COUNTY. A modification of the Budget may include the addition of any new budget category. Approval of the Budget Modification by COUNTY includes approval of the new Budget Category. Frequencies of Budget Modification request initiated by SUBRECIPIENT are outlined in specified COUNTY policy. Budget modification requests will not be processed after April 30 of each annual CONTRACT term.

38. Annual Audit:

- A. Independent Audit: Following each COUNTY Fiscal Year covered by this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT shall independently arrange for an audit of its use during the preceding COUNTY Fiscal Year of Dispute Resolution funds received from COUNTY. Said audit shall contain a final reconciliation of actual revenues and expenses compared to the Budget (Attachment "C-~~67~~") for said COUNTY Fiscal Year, pursuant to 16 California Code of Regulations Section 3642. Said audit shall describe and assess fiscal practices and status. SUBRECIPIENT shall submit one (1) copy of such audit report to COUNTY and to the State's Department of Consumer Affairs within ninety (90) days after the end of each COUNTY Fiscal Year covered by this CONTRACT.
- B. State Audit: Pursuant to and in accordance with Government Code Section 8546.7 in the event this CONTRACT provides for expenditures of public funds in excess of ten thousand (\$10,000), the PARTIES shall be subject to an examination and audit by the State Auditor for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this CONTRACT.

39. Budget:

SUBRECIPIENT agrees that the expenditures of any and all funds under this CONTRACT will be in accordance with the Budget, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment "C-~~67~~", and which by this reference is incorporated herein and made a part hereof as if fully set forth.

40. Match:

SUBRECIPIENT shall make a cash and/or in-kind match from non-Dispute Resolution Program fund sources in an amount equal or more than fifty (50) percent of the total

amount of Dispute Resolution Program costs pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 470.2, as specified in Attachment "C-67" Budget.

41. Nondiscrimination and Compliance Provisions:

- A. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions; the Nontraditional Employment for Women Act of 1991; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; the Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended; the Equal Opportunity provisions in Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Order 11375 and supplemented by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. Part 60; and with all applicable requirements imposed by or pursuant to regulations or Executive Order implementing those laws, including, but not limited to, 29 C.F.R. parts 33 and 37. The United States, the State of California and COUNTY have a right to seek judicial enforcement of this requirement.
- B. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (California Code, Section 12900 et seq.), and the regulations promulgated there under (California Code of Regulations, Title 2 Section 7285.0 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this CONTRACT by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.
- C. In the performance of this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT and its subcontractors shall not deny the benefits to any person on the basis of race, ancestry, national origin, religion, color, ethnic group identification, sex, age, mental or physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (including cancer), marital status, denial of family care leave, political affiliation or belief, nor will they unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, ancestry, national origin, Religion, color, ethnic group identification, sex, age, mental or physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (including cancer) , marital status, denial of family care leave, political affiliation, or belief. SUBRECIPIENT shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment.
- D. SUBRECIPIENT will include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of this Paragraph 41 of the CONTRACT in all subcontracts to perform work under this CONTRACT.
- E. SUBRECIPIENT will give written notice of its obligations under this Paragraph 41 of the CONTRACT to labor organizations with which SUBRECIPIENT has a collective bargaining or other contract.
- F. SUBRECIPIENT shall furnish any and all information requested by COUNTY and shall permit COUNTY access, during business hours, to books, record and accounts in order to ascertain SUBRECIPIENT's compliance with the above non-discrimination requirements.

42. Instructors:

If necessary, such instructors shall be appropriately certified by the State of California. Within thirty (30) days after the execution of this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT shall submit to COUNTY a list of the names and qualification of all instructors who will be providing training and shall notify COUNTY within five (5) business days of any amendments or revision thereto.

43. Publication:

No copies of sketches, schedules, written documents, computer based data, photographs, maps or graphs, including graphic art work, resulting from performance or prepared in connection with this CONTRACT, are to be released by SUBRECIPIENT and/or anyone acting under the supervision of SUBRECIPIENT to any person, partnership, company, corporation, or department, without prior written approval by the COUNTY, except as necessary for the performance of the services of this CONTRACT. All press releases, including graphic display information to be published in newspapers, magazines, etc., are to be administered only by the COUNTY unless otherwise agreed to by both PARTIES.

44. Drug Free Workplace:

SUBRECIPIENT shall execute and abide by the Drug Free Workplace Certification attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein by this reference.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

General Terms and Conditions:

- A. Governing Law and Venue:** This CONTRACT has been negotiated and executed in the State of California and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this CONTRACT, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange COUNTY, California, and the PARTIES hereto agree to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. Furthermore, the parties specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for trial to another COUNTY.
- B. Entire Contract:** This CONTRACT, including Attachments, and Exhibits, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, when accepted by the SUBRECIPIENT either in writing or by the shipment of any article or other commencement of performance hereunder, contains the entire CONTRACT between the PARTIES with respect to the matters herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings other than those set forth herein or referred to herein. No exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on COUNTY unless authorized by COUNTY in writing. Electronic acceptance of any additional terms, conditions or supplemental contracts by any COUNTY employee or agent, including but not limited to installers of software, shall not be valid or binding on COUNTY unless accepted in writing by CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.
- C. Amendments:** No alteration or variation of the terms of this CONTRACT shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on COUNTY unless authorized by COUNTY in writing.
- D. Taxes:** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- E. Delivery:** Time of delivery of services is of the essence in this CONTRACT. COUNTY reserves the right to refuse any services and to cancel all or any part of the descriptions or services that do not conform to the prescribed Scope of Services. Delivery shall not be deemed to be complete until all services have actually been received and accepted in writing by COUNTY.
- F. Acceptance/Payment:** Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the COUNTY, 1) acceptance shall not be deemed complete unless in writing and until all the services have actually been received to the satisfaction of COUNTY, and 2) payment shall be made in arrears after satisfactory acceptance.
- G. Warranty:** SUBRECIPIENT expressly warrants that the services covered by this CONTRACT are fit for the particular purpose for which they are intended. Acceptance of this order shall constitute an agreement upon SUBRECIPIENT's part to indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES as identified in paragraph "HH" below, and as more fully described in Paragraph "HH", harmless from liability, loss, damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by COUNTY by reason of the failure of the services to conform to such warranties, faulty work performance, negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable state or federal codes, ordinances, orders, or statutes, including the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and the California Industrial Safety Act. Such remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies provided by law.

- H. Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement:** Unless otherwise expressly provided in this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT shall be solely responsible for clearing the right to use any patented or copyrighted materials in the performance of this CONTRACT. SUBRECIPIENT warrants that any software as modified through services provided hereunder will not infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right, or trade secret right of any third party. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in Paragraph "HH" below, it shall indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES harmless from any and all such claims and be responsible for payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from such claim(s), including, but not limited to, attorney's fees, costs and expenses.
- I. Assignment or Sub-Contracting:** The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. Furthermore, neither the performance of this CONTRACT nor any portion thereof may be assigned or sub-contracted by SUBRECIPIENT without the express written consent of COUNTY. Any attempt by SUBRECIPIENT to assign or sub-contract the performance or any portion thereof of this CONTRACT without the express written consent of COUNTY shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this CONTRACT.
- J. Non-Discrimination:** In the performance of this CONTRACT, SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it will comply with the requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage nor permit any subcontractors to engage in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons. SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject SUBRECIPIENT to all the penalties imposed for a violation of Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code.
- K. Termination:** In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, COUNTY has the right to terminate this CONTRACT without penalty immediately with cause or after 30 days' written notice without cause, unless otherwise specified. Cause shall be defined as any breach of CONTRACT, any misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the SUBRECIPIENT. Exercise by COUNTY of its right to terminate the CONTRACT shall relieve COUNTY of all further obligations.
- L. Consent to Breach Not Waiver:** No term or provision of this CONTRACT shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach.
- M. Remedies Not Exclusive:** The remedies for breach set forth in this CONTRACT are cumulative as to one another and as to any other provided by law, rather than exclusive; and the expression of certain remedies in this CONTRACT does not preclude resort by either party to any other remedies provided by law.
- N. Independent SUBRECIPIENT:** SUBRECIPIENT shall be considered an independent SUBRECIPIENT and neither SUBRECIPIENT nor its employees; nor anyone working under SUBRECIPIENT shall be considered an agent or an employee of COUNTY. Neither SUBRECIPIENT nor its employees; nor anyone working under SUBRECIPIENT shall qualify for workers' compensation or other fringe benefits of any kind through COUNTY.
- O. Performance:** SUBRECIPIENT shall perform all work under this CONTRACT, taking necessary steps and precautions to perform the work to COUNTY's satisfaction. SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical assurance,

timely completion and coordination of all documentation and other services furnished by the SUBRECIPIENT under this CONTRACT. SUBRECIPIENT shall perform all work diligently, carefully, and in a good and workman-like manner; shall furnish all labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies necessary therefore; shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities, including those of COUNTY required in its governmental capacity, in connection with performance of the work; and, if permitted to subcontract, shall be fully responsible for all work performed by subcontractors.

P. Insurance:

Insurance Provisions

Prior to the provision of services under this contract, the SUBRECIPIENT agrees to purchase all required insurance at SUBRECIPIENT's expense, including all endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy the COUNTY that the insurance provisions of this CONTRACT have been complied with. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to keep such insurance coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit with the COUNTY during the entire term of this CONTRACT. In addition, all sub-SUBRECIPIENTS performing work on behalf of SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this CONTRACT shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for SUBRECIPIENT.

SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that all subcontractors performing work on behalf of SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this CONTRACT shall be covered under SUBRECIPIENT's insurance as an Additional Insured or maintain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT shall not allow sub-SUBRECIPIENTS to work if subcontractors have less than the level of coverage required by COUNTY from SUBRECIPIENT under this CONTRACT. It is the obligation of SUBRECIPIENT to provide notice of the insurance requirements to every subcontractor and to receive proof of insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor to begin work. Such proof of insurance must be maintained by SUBRECIPIENT through the entirety of this CONTRACT for inspection by COUNTY representative(s) at any reasonable time.

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. Any self-insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of \$50,000 shall specifically be approved by the COUNTY's Risk Manager, or designee, upon review of SUBRECIPIENT'S current audited financial report. If SUBRECIPIENT'S SIR is approved, SUBRECIPIENT, in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity provision(s) in this CONTRACT, agree to all the following:

- 1) In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold the County harmless against any and all liability, claim, demand or suit resulting from SUBRECIPIENT's, its agents, employee's or subcontractor's performance of this Contract, SUBRECIPIENT shall defend the County at its sole cost and expense with counsel approved by Board of Supervisors against same; and
- 2) SUBRECIPIENT's duty to defend, as stated above, shall be absolute and irrespective of any duty to indemnify or hold harmless; and
- 3) The provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply to any and all actions to which the duty to defend stated above applies, and the SUBRECIPIENT's SIR provision shall be interpreted as though the SUBRECIPIENT was an insurer and the County was the insured.

If the SUBRECIPIENT fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the COUNTY for the full term of this CONTRACT, the COUNTY may terminate this CONTRACT.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A- (Secure A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the most current edition of the **Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com**). It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business in the state of California (California Admitted Carrier).

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the CEO/Office of Risk Management retains the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial ratings.

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the SUBRECIPIENT shall provide the minimum limits and coverage as set forth below:

Coverage	Minimum Limits
Commercial General Liability	\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 aggregate
Automobile Liability including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Workers Compensation	Statutory
Employers Liability Insurance	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Network Security & Privacy Liability	\$1,000,000 per claims-made
Professional Liability Insurance	\$1,000,000 per claims-made \$1,000,000 aggregate
Sexual Misconduct Liability	\$1,000,000 per occurrence

Required Coverage Forms

The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad.

The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 0012, CA 00 20, or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad.

Required Endorsements

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

- 1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13, or a form at least as broad naming the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials,**

officers, employees, agents and employees as Additional Insured, or provide blanket coverage, which will state **AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT**.

- 2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a form at least as broad evidencing that the SUBRECIPIENT'S insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.

The Network Security and Privacy Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements which shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

- 1) An Additional Insured endorsement naming the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** as Additional Insureds for its vicarious liability.
- 2) A primary and non-contributing endorsement evidencing that the SUBRECIPIENT'S insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.

The Workers' Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement waiving all rights of subrogation against the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** or provide blanket coverage, which will state **AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT**.

All insurance policies required by this CONTRACT shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County of Orange and members of the Board of Supervisors, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

SUBRECIPIENT shall notify COUNTY in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation and ten (10) days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice to COUNTY. Failure to provide written notice of cancellation may constitute a material breach of the CONTRACT, upon which the COUNTY may suspend or terminate this CONTRACT.

If SUBRECIPIENT's Professional Liability and/or Network Security & Privacy Liability are "claims made" policies, SUBRECIPIENT shall agree to maintain coverage for two (2) years following the completion of the CONTRACT.

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also known as a "separation of insureds" clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy).

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the department address listed on the solicitation.

If the SUBRECIPIENT fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven (7) days of notification to CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, award may be made to the next qualified vendor.

COUNTY expressly retains the right to require SUBRECIPIENT to increase or decrease insurance of any of the above insurance types throughout the term of this CONTRACT.

Any increase or decrease in insurance will be as deemed by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to adequately protect COUNTY.

COUNTY shall notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If SUBRECIPIENT does not deposit copies of acceptable certificates of insurance and endorsements with COUNTY incorporating such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this CONTRACT may be in breach without further notice to SUBRECIPIENT, and COUNTY shall be entitled to all legal remedies.

The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit SUBRECIPIENT's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this CONTRACT, nor act in any way to reduce the policy coverage and limits available from the insurer.

Q. Bills and Liens: "Intentionally Left Blank"

R. Changes: SUBRECIPIENT shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the COUNTY'S specific written approval.

S. ~~Change of Ownership:~~ ~~SUBRECIPIENT agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of SUBRECIPIENT's business prior to completion of this CONTRACT, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume SUBRECIPIENT's duties and obligations contained in this CONTRACT and complete them to the satisfaction of COUNTY.~~ **Change of Ownership/Name, Litigation Status, Conflicts with COUNTY Interest:** SUBRECIPIENT agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of SUBRECIPIENT'S business prior to completion of this CONTRACT, and the COUNTY agrees to an assignment of the CONTRACT, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other instruments of transfer to assume SUBRECIPIENT'S duties and obligations contained in this CONTRACT and complete them to the satisfaction of the COUNTY.

COUNTY reserves the right to immediately terminate the CONTRACT in the event the COUNTY determines that the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the COUNTY for the provision of services under the CONTRACT.

In addition, SUBRECIPIENT has the duty to notify the COUNTY in writing of any change in the SUBRECIPIENT'S status with respect to name changes that do not require an assignment of the CONTRACT. The SUBRECIPIENT is also obligated to notify the COUNTY in writing if the SUBRECIPIENT becomes a PARTY to any litigation against the COUNTY, or a PARTY to litigation that may reasonably affect the SUBRECIPIENT'S performance under the CONTRACT, as well as any potential conflicts of interest between SUBRECIPIENT and COUNTY that may arise prior to or during the period of CONTRACT performance. While SUBRECIPIENT will be required to provide this information without prompting from the COUNTY any time there is a change in SUBRECIPIENT'S name, conflict of interest or litigation status, SUBRECIPIENT must also provide an update to the COUNTY of its status in these areas whenever requested by the COUNTY.

S. The SUBRECIPIENT shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with COUNTY interests. In addition to the SUBRECIPIENT, this obligation shall apply to the SUBRECIPIENT'S employees, agents, and subcontractors associated with the provision of goods and services provided under this CONTRACT. The SUBRECIPIENT'S efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing rules and procedures preventing its employees, agents, and subcontractors

from providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to influence or appear to influence COUNTY staff or elected officers in the performance of their duties.

- T. Force Majeure:** SUBRECIPIENT shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance penalties during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this CONTRACT caused by any act of God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided SUBRECIPIENT gives written notice of the cause of the delay to COUNTY within thirty-six (36) hours of the start of the delay and SUBRECIPIENT avails himself of any available remedies.
- U. Confidentiality:** SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all COUNTY and COUNTY-related records and information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently exist or exist at any time during the term of this CONTRACT. All such records and information shall be considered confidential and kept confidential by SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT's staff, agents and employees.
- V. Compliance with Laws:** SUBRECIPIENT represents and warrants that services to be provided under this CONTRACT shall fully comply, at SUBRECIPIENT's expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions, ordinances, requirements, and regulations (collectively "laws"), including, but not limited to those issued by COUNTY in its governmental capacity and all other laws applicable to the services at the time services are provided to and accepted by COUNTY. SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that COUNTY is relying on SUBRECIPIENT to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the requirements of Paragraph "HH" below, SUBRECIPIENT agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold COUNTY and COUNTY INDEMNITEES harmless from all liability, damages, costs, and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such.
- W. Freight (F.O.B):** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- X. Pricing:** "Intentionally Left Blank"
- Y.** "Intentionally Left Blank".
- Z. Terms and Conditions:** SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges that it has read and agrees to all terms and conditions included in this CONTRACT.
- AA. Headings:** The various headings and numbers herein, the grouping of provisions of this CONTRACT into separate clauses and paragraphs, and the organization hereof are for the purpose of convenience only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.
- BB. Severability:** If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this CONTRACT is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.
- CC. Calendar Days:** Any reference to the word "day" or "days" herein shall mean calendar day or calendar days, respectively, unless otherwise expressly provided.
- DD. Attorney Fees:** In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this CONTRACT, or where any provision hereof is validly asserted as a defense, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees, costs and expenses.
- EE. Interpretation:** This CONTRACT has been negotiated at arm's length and between persons sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this CONTRACT. In addition, each PARTY has been represented by experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing or has knowingly declined to seek such

counsel despite being encouraged and given the opportunity to do so. Each PARTY further acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this CONTRACT by any other PARTY hereto or by any person representing them, or both. Accordingly, any rule or law (including California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this CONTRACT against the PARTY that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this CONTRACT shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to affect the purpose of the PARTIES and this CONTRACT.

FF. Authority: "Intentionally left Blank"

GG. Employee Eligibility Verification: The SUBRECIPIENT warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under this CONTRACT meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and regulations. The SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain, from all employees, consultants and subcontractors performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended. The SUBRECIPIENT shall retain all such documentation for all covered employee, consultants and subcontractors for the period prescribed by the law. The SUBRECIPIENT shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by COUNTY, and hold harmless, the COUNTY, its COUNTY INDEMNITEES, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against the SUBRECIPIENT or the COUNTY or COUNTY INDEMNITEES, or any combination of the three in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work under this CONTRACT.

HH. Indemnification: SUBRECIPIENT agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by COUNTY, and hold COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and those special districts and departments which COUNTY's Board of Supervisors acts as the governing Board ("COUNTY INDEMNITEES") harmless from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal injury or property damage, arising from or related to the services, products or other performance provided by SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this CONTRACT. If judgment is entered against SUBRECIPIENT and COUNTY by a court of competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of COUNTY or COUNTY INDEMNITEES, SUBRECIPIENT and COUNTY agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by the court. Neither party shall request a jury apportionment.

II. Audits/Inspections: SUBRECIPIENT agrees to permit the COUNTY's Audit-Controller or the Auditor-Controller's authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing firm hired by the COUNTY) access during normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, reports, files, financial records, supporting documentation, including payroll and accounts payable/receivable records, and other papers or property of SUBRECIPIENT for the purpose of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this CONTRACT. The inspection and/or audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the CONTRACT including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the CONTRACT. The COUNTY will provide reasonable notice of such an audit or inspection.

The COUNTY reserves the right to audit and verify the SUBRECIPIENT's records before final payment is made.

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this CONTRACT or by law. SUBRECIPIENT agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to include a similar right to the COUNTY to audit records and interview staff of any sub-SUBRECIPIENT related to performance of CONTRACT.

Should the SUBRECIPIENT cease to exist as a legal entity, the SUBRECIPIENT's records pertaining to this agreement shall be forwarded to the surviving entity in a merger or acquisition or, in the event of liquidation, to the COUNTY.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto certify that they have read and understand all the terms and conditions contained herein and have hereby cause this CONTRACT to be executed.

*** Community Service Programs, Inc.**

By: _____

By: _____

Name: _____

Name: _____

Title: _____

Title: _____

Dated: _____

Dated: _____

*For subrecipients that are corporations, signature requirements are as follows: 1) One signature by the Chairman of the Board, the President or any Vice President; and 2) One signature by the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer or an Assistant Treasurer.

For Subrecipients that are not corporations, the person who has authority to bind the subrecipient to a contract, must sign on one of the lines above.

COUNTY OF ORANGE

A Political Subdivision of the State of California

By: _____

Date: _____

Dylan Wright, Director
OC Community Resources

**APPROVED AS TO FORM
DEPUTY COUNTY COUNSEL**

By: _____

Dated: _____

DEPUTY COUNTY COUNSEL



~~SIXTH SEVENTH~~ AMENDMENT

TO CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA

BETWEEN THE

COUNTY OF ORANGE

AND

WAYMAKERS (aka CSP)

FOR

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROGRAMS ACT SERVICES

FUNDING SOURCE: 100% CIVIL FILING FEES

This Amendment to ~~Contract~~CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA, hereinafter referred to as "~~Sixth Seventh~~ Amendment," is made and entered into or upon execution of all necessary signatures between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California; hereinafter referred to as "~~County~~COUNTY," and Waymakers (aka CSP), DUNS No. 12-673-5729, a California non-profit organization, in the State of California with a place of business at 1221 East Dyer Road, Suite 120, Santa Ana, CA 92705-5634, hereinafter referred to as "~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENT," with ~~County~~COUNTY and ~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENT sometimes referred to as "~~Party~~PARTY", or collectively as "~~Parties~~PARTIES."

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, ~~County and Subrecipient the~~ PARTIES ~~entered into~~executed ~~Contract~~CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA (hereinafter referred to as "~~Original~~ContractCONTRACT"), for the provision of Dispute Resolution Programs Act Services activities commencing October 1, 2017 and terminating June 30, 2020 in the amount of \$550,000; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES executed First Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to increase the ~~Contract~~CONTRACT in the amount of \$137,500 for a new maximum obligation amount of \$687,500; and to modify Paragraph 4. Maximum Obligation; and to ~~replaced~~ Attachment A – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements with Attachment A-1, ~~replaced~~ Attachment B – Payment/Compensation with Attachment B-1, ~~replaced~~ Attachment C – Budget with Attachment C-1, ~~replaced~~ Attachment D – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-1, and ~~replaced~~ Attachment E – Performance Standards with Attachment E-1; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES approved ~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENT'S request for name change from "Community Services Program, Inc." to "Wayfinders Supportive Solutions," effective January 1, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES executed Second Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to replace Attachment C-1 – Budget with Attachment C-2; and to ~~amended~~ ~~Contract~~CONTRACT to reflect a second name change. All references to "Wayfinder Supportive Solutions" were changed to "Waymakers" with an effective date of July 1, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES executed Third Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to increase the ~~Contract~~CONTRACT in the amount of \$7,500 for a new maximum obligation amount of \$695,000; and to replace Attachment A-1 – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements with Attachment A-2, ~~replace~~ Attachment C-2 – Budget with Attachment C-3, ~~replace~~ Attachment D-1 – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-2, and ~~replace~~ Attachment E-1 – Performance ~~and~~ Standards with Attachment E-2; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES executed Fourth Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to replace Attachment C-3 – Budget with Attachment C-4 and Attachment D-2 – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-3; and

WHEREAS, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES executed Fifth Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to increase the ~~Contract~~CONTRACT in the amount of \$30,000 for a new maximum obligation amount of \$725,000; and to replaced Attachment A-2 – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements with Attachment A-3, ~~replaced~~ Attachment B—Payment/Compensation with Attachment B-1, ~~replaced~~ Attachment C-4 – Budget with Attachment C-5, ~~replaced~~ Attachment D-3 – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-4, ~~and replaced~~ Attachment E-2 – Performance ~~and~~ Standards with Attachment E-3; and

WHEREAS, the ~~County~~PARTIES now desires to execute~~executed~~ Sixth Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to replace Attachment C-5 – Budget with Attachment C-6 and Attachment D-4 – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-5; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY now desires to execute Seventh Amendment to CONTRACT No. 17-28-0001-DRPA to renew the CONTRACT for an additional one-year period, effective July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 and with a new annual maximum obligation amount of \$280,000; and to replace Attachment A-3 – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements with Attachment A-4, Attachment B-1 - Payment/Compensation with Attachment B-2, Attachment C-6 – Budget with Attachment C-7, Attachment D-5 – Staffing Plan with Attachment D-6, Attachment E-3 – Performance Standards with Attachment E-4; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to amend Paragraph S. – Change of Ownership, and Paragraph 21. - Notices; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations set forth herein, both ~~Parties~~PARTIES mutually agree as follows:

1. CONTRACT Term: The CONTRACT is hereby renewed for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 and with a new annual maximum obligation amount of \$280,000. This CONTRACT may be renewed for one additional one-year term pursuant to the CONTRACT Term.
2. Attachment A-3 – Scope of Services and General Program Requirements is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment A-4 - Scope of Services and General Program Requirements.
3. Attachment B-1 - Payment/Compensation is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment B-2 - Payment/Compensation.
4. Attachment C-5-6 -- Budget is deleted in its entirety and replaced with, shall be replaced with Attachment C-67 - Budget.

5. Attachment D-4-5 - Staffing Plan, shall be replaced with is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment D-56 – Staffing Plan.

6. Attachment E-3 – Performance Standards is deleted in its entirety and replaced with Attachment E-4 – Performance Standards.

2. —
—

7. Paragraph S of the CONTRACT is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

FROM:

“S. Change of Ownership: SUBRECIPIENT agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of SUBRECIPIENT’S business prior to completion of this CONTRACT, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume SUBRECIPIENT’S duties and obligations contained in this CONTRACT and complete them to the satisfaction of COUNTY.”

TO:

“S. Change of Ownership/Name, Litigation Status, Conflicts with COUNTY Interest: SUBRECIPIENT agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of SUBRECIPIENT’S business prior to completion of this CONTRACT, and the COUNTY agrees to an assignment of the CONTRACT, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other instruments of transfer to assume SUBRECIPIENT’S duties and obligations contained in this CONTRACT and complete them to the satisfaction of the COUNTY.

COUNTY reserves the right to immediately terminate the CONTRACT in the event the COUNTY determines that the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the COUNTY for the provision of services under the CONTRACT.

In addition, SUBRECIPIENT has the duty to notify the COUNTY in writing of any change in the SUBRECIPIENT’S status with respect to name changes that do not require an assignment of the CONTRACT. The SUBRECIPIENT is also obligated to notify the COUNTY in writing if the SUBRECIPIENT becomes a PARTY to any litigation against the COUNTY, or a PARTY to litigation that may reasonably affect the SUBRECIPIENT’S performance under the CONTRACT, as well as any potential conflicts of interest between SUBRECIPIENT and COUNTY that may arise prior to or during the period of CONTRACT performance. While SUBRECIPIENT will be required to provide this information without prompting from the COUNTY any time there is a change in SUBRECIPIENT’S name, conflict of interest or litigation status, SUBRECIPIENT must also provide an update to the COUNTY of its status in these areas whenever requested by the COUNTY.

The SUBRECIPIENT shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with COUNTY interests. In addition to the SUBRECIPIENT, this obligation shall apply to the SUBRECIPIENT’S employees, agents, and subcontractors associated with the provision of goods and services provided under this CONTRACT. The SUBRECIPIENT’S efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing rules and procedures preventing its employees, agents, and subcontractors

from providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to influence or appear to influence COUNTY staff or elected officers in the performance of their duties. "

8. Paragraph 21 of the CONTRACT is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

FROM:

"21. Notices:

Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, except through the course of the PARTIES routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the parties hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

For COUNTY:

<u>OC Community Resources</u>	<u>OC Community Resources</u>
<u>Community Investment Division</u>	<u>Contract Development and Management</u>
<u>PROJECT MANAGER</u>	<u>CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR</u>
<u>1300 S. Grand Ave. Bldg. B, 3rd Floor</u>	<u>1501 East St. Andrew Place, 1st Floor</u>
<u>Santa Ana, CA 92705-4407</u>	<u>Santa Ana, CA 92705-4930</u>
<u>Attn: Reza Zargham</u>	<u>Attn: Elsa Rivera</u>

For SUBRECIPIENT:

OC Human Relations Council-Waymakers
Dispute Resolution Program
Ronnetta J Johnson
Executive Director
1221 E. Dyer Road Suite 120
Santa Ana, CA 92705-5634"

TO:

"21. Notices:

Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing, except through the course of the PARTIES routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as

the parties hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

For COUNTY:

<u>OC Community Resources</u>	<u>OC Community Resources</u>
<u>Community Investment Division</u>	<u>Contract Development and Management</u>
<u>PROJECT MANAGER</u>	<u>CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR</u>
<u>1300 S. Grand Ave. Bldg. B, 3rd Floor</u>	<u>601 N. Ross St., 6th Floor</u>
<u>Santa Ana, CA 92705-4407</u>	<u>Santa Ana, CA 92701</u>
<u>Attn: Program Manager</u>	<u>Attn: Contract Administrator</u>

For SUBRECIPIENT:

~~OC Human Relations Council~~ Waymakers
Dispute Resolution Program
Ronnetta J Johnson
Executive Director
1221 E. Dyer Road Suite 120
Santa Ana, CA 92705-5634"

9. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, all terms and conditions contained in the Original-original Contract~~CONTRACT~~, including any amendments/modifications, are hereby incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth herein and shall remain in full force and effect.

THE REMAINDER OF THE PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the ~~Parties~~PARTIES hereto have executed this ~~Sixth~~Seventh Amendment on the dates with their respective signatures:

***Waymakers**

By: _____	By: _____
Name: _____ (Print)	Name: _____ (Print)
Title: _____	Title: _____
Dated: _____	Dated: _____

*For ~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENTs that are corporations, signature requirements are as follows: 1) One signature by the Chairman of the Board, the President or any Vice President; and 2) One signature by the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer or an Assistant Treasurer.

For ~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENTs that are not corporations, the person who has authority to bind the ~~Subrecipient~~SUBRECIPIENT to a ~~contract~~CONTRACT, must sign on one of the lines above.

COUNTY OF ORANGE
A Political Subdivision of the State of California

By: _____ Dylan Wright, Director —OC Community Resources	Dated: _____
--	--------------

APPROVED AS TO FORM
COUNTY COUNSEL

By: _____ <u>DEPUTY COUNTY COUNSEL</u>	Dated: _____
---	--------------

Contractor: **SUBRECIPIENT:** Waymakers

1. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Dispute Resolution Programs Act (DRPA).

2. Referral Sources

A. SUBRECIPIENT shall cultivate referral sources including but not limited to the following:

Referral Source	Type(s) of Referrals (To be filled in by	Services to be Provided
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Central Justice Center: Mondays and Wednesdays 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Small Claims Limited Civil Elder Abuse Probate Mediation Services Other mediation services as requested by the Court 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Intake coordination Mediation duties Staff and volunteer support Administrative Oversight (duties include, but are not limited to: retaining site records, submission of monthly case logs, volunteer hours and litigants' evaluations)
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> West Justice CentersCenter: Mondays and Fridays 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Small Claims Small Claims Appeals Judgment/Debtor Unlawful Detainers Limited Civil Mediation Services Limited Civil Judgement/Debtor Unlimited Civil Mandatory Settlement Conferences Civil Harassment Family CourtOther mediation services as requested by the Court 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation Intake coordination Mediation duties Staff and volunteer support
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Harbor Justice Center: Mondays, Tuesdays, 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Small Claims Civil Mediations Services 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals

<u>Wednesdays and Thursdays</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <u>Other mediation services as requested by the Court</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <u>Intake coordination</u> <u>Mediation duties</u> <u>Staff and volunteer support</u> <u>Administrative Oversight (duties include, but are not limited to: retaining site records, submission of monthly case logs, volunteer hours and litigants' evaluations)</u>
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Lamoreaux Justice Center and Other Family Centric Programs, effective 2017-2020 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Dissolution of Marriage (Divorce) Dissolution of Domestic Partnership Legal Separation Post Judgment Modifications Child Custody and Visitation Spousal Support Property Division Parent/Child Disputes Other Family Issues 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Legal Aid Society of Orange County, effective 2017-2020 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Landlord/Tenant Neighbor/Neighbor Employment Consumer/Merchant Domestic/Household Personal Injury/Property Damage Business/Business 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <u>Orange County Juvenile Probation Dept. /Sheriff Dept./Local Police Depts.</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <u>Neighbor/Neighbor</u> <u>Domestic/Household</u> <u>Intergroup/Cross-Cultural</u> <u>Police/Community</u> <u>Criminal (Juvenile)</u> <u>Landlord/Tenant</u> <u>Family/Domestic Household</u> <u>Business/Business</u> 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <u>Maintain regular contacts</u> <u>Develop referrals</u> <u>Perform intake</u> <u>Resolve cases through mediation</u>

<ul style="list-style-type: none">• <u>Other: Non-Profit Organizations, Government Offices, Community Centers, Schools, Community Mediations, etc.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none">• <u>Landlord/Tenant</u>• <u>Neighbor/Neighbor</u>• <u>Employment</u>• <u>Consumer/Merchant</u>• <u>Domestic/Household</u>• <u>Personal Injury/Property Damage</u>• <u>Business/Business</u>• <u>Workplace/Employment</u>• <u>School</u>• <u>Intergroup/Cross-Cultural</u>• <u>Police/Community</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none">• <u>Maintain regular contacts</u>• <u>Develop referrals</u>• <u>Perform intake</u>• <u>Resolve cases through mediation</u>
--	---	--

Referral Source	Type(s) of Referrals (To be filled in by Contractor)	Services to be Provided
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Orange County Juvenile Probation Dept./Sheriff Dept./Local Police Depts., effective 2017-2020 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Neighbor/Neighbor Domestic/Household Intergroup/Cross-Cultural Police/Community Criminal (Juvenile) Landlord/Tenant Family/Domestic Household Business/Business 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Other: Non-Profit Organizations, Government Offices, Community Centers, Schools, etc., effective 2017-2020 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Landlord/Tenant Neighbor/Neighbor Employment Consumer/Merchant Domestic/Household Personal Injury/Property Damage Business/Business Workplace/Employment School Intergroup/Cross-Cultural Police/Community 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> West Justice Center, effective April 2, 2019. 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Small Claims Civil Harassment Unlawful Detainer Unlimited Civil 	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Maintain regular contacts Develop referrals Perform intake Resolve cases through mediation

3.

3. Volunteer Coordination

A. ~~A.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall cultivate ~~the following number of 20~~ volunteer mediators to provide DRPA services:

- ~~FY 2017-18 (October 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018): 27~~
- ~~FY 2018-19: 36~~
- ~~FY 2019-20: 36~~

B. ~~B.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure all volunteer mediators are trained.

A.C. ~~C.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure volunteer hours are documented.

4. 4Collaborative Participation

~~A.~~ A.—SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain active participation in the Dispute Resolution “Collaborative”, as defined as the all of the funded Dispute Resolution SUBRECIPIENTS by the County of Orange, and shall:

- ~~1.) (1)~~ Attend or be represented at all “Collaborative” meetings.
- ~~(2)2)~~ Attend or be represented at all bi-monthly meetings of the Small Claims Court judges.
- ~~(3)3)~~ Provide appropriate mediation services to Orange County justice centers.
- ~~(4)4)~~ Ensure the coordination of mediation activities related to the Collaborative at each of the five Justice Centers, including but not limited to:
 - ~~5.) (a)~~ Ensuring the availability of DRPA trained and qualified mediators.
 - ~~6.) (b)~~ Providing such staff support as necessary to maintain high quality service level.

B. Mandated DRPA training in Orange County

- ~~1.) (1)~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall provide 2 mandated mediation trainings per year.
~~5.~~

5. Education and Outreach Services in Orange County

~~A.~~ A.—SUBRECIPIENT shall provide ~~the following number of~~ 8 educational workshops:

- ~~• FY 2017-18 (October 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018): 6~~
- ~~• FY 2018-19: 8~~
- ~~• FY 2019-20: 8~~

B. SUBRECIPIENT shall provide ~~the following number of~~ 300-400 public presentations regarding the availability of DRPA services:

- ~~• FY 2017-18 (October 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018): 45~~
- ~~• FY 2018-19: 17~~
- ~~• FY 2019-20: 17~~

~~C.~~ C. SUBRECIPIENT shall initiate media activities appropriate for DRPA.

~~D.~~ D. SUBRECIPIENT shall disseminate brochures and flyers regarding the availability of DRPA services to the Orange County community.

6. Scope of ~~Services~~Work

In order to meet the goals and objectives outlined above, Dispute Resolution Program providers shall:

- A. Advocate, publicize and encourage the use of dispute resolution services through ~~the use of cable television spots, local news programs and other communications media~~public presentations;
- B. Offer effective alternatives to formal court proceedings for the settlement of disputes (which ~~include conciliation, includes~~ mediation ~~and arbitration~~);
- C. Be fully qualified through DRPA mandated mediation training and relevant experience to mediate a wide variety of disputes arising with the County;
- D. Make maximum use of local resources including in-kind support, volunteers and public facilities;
- E. Be outcome based and participate in the data collection and analysis and have an evaluation method for determining effectiveness of services (such as the One-Stop Centers and Business Services Centers);
- F. Conduct monthly follow-up surveys and provide written results to Director on a quarterly basis (disputants' evaluation of the services provided, fairness, difficulties experienced, and willingness to refer or use the services provided again);
- G. Cultivate volunteer mediators to provide DRPA services. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure all volunteer mediators are training based on the DRPA regulations. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure volunteer hours are documented;
- H. Maintain active participation in the Dispute Resolution "Collaborative," defined as all of the funded Dispute Resolution SUBRECIPIENTS by the County, as shall attend or be represented at all "Collaborative" meetings. Attend or be represented at all bi-monthly meetings of the Small Claims Court Judges. Provide appropriate mediation services to Orange County Justice Centers. Ensure the coordination of mediation activities related to the Collaborative at each of the five Justice Centers, including, but not limited to:
 - (1)a. Ensuring the availability of DRPA trained and qualified mediators;
 - (2)b. Providing such staff support as necessary to maintain high quality service level; and
 - (3)i. Initiate media activities appropriate for DRPA, and in coordination with the Coordinator. SUBRECIPIENT shall disseminate brochures and flyers regarding the availability of DRPA services to the Orange County community.

7. ~~7.~~Referral Sources

Cultivate referral sources, by maintaining regular contacts, developing Referrals, performing intake, and resolving cases through mediation, with, but not limited to:

- A. Participating Orange County Justice Centers and Family Court with referrals that include Small Claims, Small Claims Appeals, Judgment Debtor, Unlawful Detainers, Limited Civil, Mandatory Settlement Conferences, Civil Harassment, Family Court Dissolution of ~~marriage~~Marriage, Dissolution of Domestic Partnership Spousal Support, Child Custody and Visitation, Property Division, ~~parent~~Parent/Child Disputes and other Family Court cases.
- B. Legal Aid Society of Orange County with referrals that may include Landlord/Tenant, neighbor/neighbor, Employment and Consumer/Merchant cases, and One Stop Center Systems.
- C. Orange County Juvenile Program Department, Sheriff's Department and other Local Law Enforcement Agencies with referrals that may include Neighbor/Neighbor, Domestic/Household, Intergroup/Cross-Cultural, and Police/Community cases.
- D. Self-referrals, non-Profit Organizations, Government Offices, community centers and others with Referrals that may include Landlord/Tenant, Neighbor/Neighbor, Employment, Consumer/Merchant, Domestic/Household, Accidents, School, Intergroup/Cross-Cultural and Police/Community Cases.

8. ~~8.~~ Volunteer Coordination

- A. SUBRECIPIENT shall cultivate volunteer mediators to provide DRPA services.
- B. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure all volunteer mediators meet the program training requirements.
- C. SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure volunteer hours are documented.
- D. Provision of Services by Neutral Persons – According to DRPA Regulations (CCR SS 3620).
 - ~~(1)~~a. DRPA service provider shall ensure that its dispute resolution services are provided by neutral persons.
 - ~~(2)~~b. An individual shall not function as the neutral person if he ~~or~~/she has any personal bias regarding any particular disputant or the subject matter of dispute.
 - ~~(3)~~ An individual shall not function as the neutral person if he ~~/~~she has a financial interest in the subject matter of the dispute of a financial relationship with any party to the dispute resolution proceeding.
 - ~~(4)~~c. The existence of such interests or relationships shall be deemed conflict of interest.
 - ~~(5)~~ If, before or during the provision of dispute resolution services, a neutral person has or ~~acquire~~acquired an actual or apparent conflict of interest, the neutral person shall so inform all disputants, and shall disqualify himself or herself as the neutral person unless all the disputants consent in writing to continue.
 - ~~(6)~~d. The DRPA service providers shall replace a disqualified neutral person at no

additional cost to any disputant.

~~9.~~

9. Education and Outreach Services

A. Service Providers shall provide educational workshops that promote the availability of dispute resolution service.

B. Service Providers shall provide public presentations regarding the availability of DRPA services.

~~C. Service Providers shall initiate media activities appropriate for DRPA.~~

~~D.C.~~ Service Providers shall disseminate brochures and flyers regarding the availability of DRPA services to the Orange County community with ~~CID's~~the County's collaboration and approval.

~~10.~~

10. Reports

- A. ~~A.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain records, statistical reports, data and information as required by the County in electronic form.
- B. ~~B.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall report monthly by the 20th day of the month statistical data which shall include but shall not be limited to data required in the Regulations and by the County. -The data reported shall maintain the confidentiality and anonymity of the persons employing the dispute resolution process.
- C. ~~C.~~ SUBRECIPIENT shall report or submit monthly to County follow-up surveys of disputants who have used services containing all the information specified in DRPA Regulations.

PAYMENT/COMPENSATION

1. **COMPENSATION:**

This is a cost reimbursable CONTRACT between the COUNTY and the SUBRECIPIENT for up to \$~~187,500 for the period one (October 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018); \$257,500 for the period two (July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2019); \$~~280,000 for the period ~~three (of July 1, 2019 — June 30, 2020) — June 30, 2021~~ as set forth in Attachment A-4 - Scope of Services attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The SUBRECIPIENT agrees to accept the specified compensation as set forth in this Contract as full remuneration for performing all services and furnishing all staffing and materials required, for any reasonably unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the execution of the services until acceptance, for risks connected with the services, and for performance by the SUBRECIPIENT of all its duties and obligations hereunder. The COUNTY shall have no obligation to pay any sum in excess of the total Contract amount specified unless authorized by an amendment in accordance with paragraphs C and R of the COUNTY's General Terms and Conditions.

2. **FIRM DISCOUNT AND PRICING STRUCTURE:**

SUBRECIPIENT guarantees that prices quoted are equal to or less than prices quoted to any other local, State or Federal government entity for services of equal or lesser scope. SUBRECIPIENT agrees that no price increases shall be passed along to the COUNTY during the term of this Contract not otherwise specified and provided for within this Contract.

3. **PAYMENT TERMS:**

An invoice for the reimbursable costs shall be submitted to the address specified below upon the completion of the services/activities and approval of the COUNTY Project Manager. SUBRECIPIENT shall reference Contract number on invoice. Payment will be net 30 days after receipt of an invoice in a format acceptable to the County of Orange and verified and approved by OC Community Services and subject to routine processing requirements of the COUNTY. The responsibility for providing an acceptable invoice rests with the SUBRECIPIENT.

Billing shall cover services not previously invoiced. The SUBRECIPIENT shall reimburse the County of Orange for any monies paid to the SUBRECIPIENT for services not provided or when services do not meet the Contract requirements.

Payments made by the COUNTY shall not preclude the right of the COUNTY from thereafter disputing any items or services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the services.

Invoice(s) are to be sent to:
 OC Community Resources
~~1770 North Broadway, 4th floor~~
~~Santa Ana, CA 92706-2642~~
 Attention: -Accounts Payable
~~601 North Ross Street, 6th Floor~~

Santa Ana, CA 92701

4. INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS:

The SUBRECIPIENT will provide an invoice on SUBRECIPIENT's letterhead for services rendered. Each invoice will have a number and will include the following information:

The Demand Letter/Invoice must include

1. SUBRECIPIENT'S name and address
2. SUBRECIPIENT'S remittance address (if different from 1 above)
3. Name of COUNTY Agency Department
4. COUNTY Contract/Master Agreement number
5. Service date(s) – Month of Service
6. Rate
7. Delivery Order (DO) / Subordinate Agreement Number
8. Deliverables / Service description (in accordance with Attachment A-4)
9. SUBRECIPIENT'S Federal I. D. number
10. Total

Budget Detail					
FY 2017-18 (October 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018)					
Cost Categories		DRPA Grant	Inkind		Total
			Cash Non-Grant	Non-Cash Non-Grant	
PROGRAM	Operations Activities:				
	Salaries	\$116,744.00		\$33,540.00	\$150,284.00
	Benefits	\$27,718.00		\$7,610.00	\$35,328.00
	Facility Lease	\$12,592.00		\$56,250.00	\$68,842.00
	Staff Training	\$1,450.00			\$1,450.00
	Printing/Publications				
	Utilities				
	Meetings / Conferences	\$1,050.00			\$1,050.00
	Telephone	\$1,200.00			\$1,200.00
	Equipment (under \$5,000)				
	Equipment Lease	\$675.00			\$675.00
	Insurance	\$820.00			\$820.00
	Professional Memberships				
	Subscriptions				
	Postage				
	Office Supplies	\$1,704.00			\$1,704.00
	Consultant/Subcontract	\$2,877.00			\$2,877.00
	Volunteers			\$90,100.00	\$90,100.00
	Travel / Mileage	\$1,770.00			\$1,770.00
	Volunteer Recognition	\$3,000.00			\$3,000.00
	Program Subtotal	\$171,600.00		\$187,500.00	\$359,100.00
ADMINISTRATIO	Administration *:				
	Salaries				
	Benefits				
	Other: Indirect	\$15,900.00			\$15,900.00
	Other				
	Administration Subtotal	\$15,900.00			\$15,900.00
	GRAND TOTAL	\$187,500.00		\$187,500.00	\$375,000.00
Percentage of Grant Total		50%			

* Cannot exceed 10% of total requested funding

** A minimum of 50% of the total program is matched funding

* Expenditure Plan FY 2017-18 (October 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018)				
Cost Categories	Qt 2	Qt 3	Qt 4	Total
	10/1/17-	1/1/18 -	4/1/18 -	
	12/31/17	3/31/18	6/30/18	
PROGRAM				
Salaries	\$42,227.00	\$39,976.00	\$34,541.00	\$116,744.00
Benefits	\$9,587.00	\$9,401.00	\$8,730.00	\$27,718.00
Facility Lease	\$4,896.00	\$4,475.00	\$3,221.00	\$12,592.00
Staff Training			\$1,450.00	\$1,450.00
Printing/Publications				
Utilities				
Meetings / Conferences			\$1,050.00	\$1,050.00
Telephone	\$488.00	\$433.00	\$279.00	\$1,200.00
Equipment (under \$5,000)				
Equipment Lease	\$95.00	\$271.00	\$309.00	\$675.00
Insurance	\$270.00	\$280.00	\$270.00	\$820.00
Professional Memberships				
Subscriptions				
Postage				
Office Supplies	\$452.00	\$600.00	\$652.00	\$1,704.00
Consultant/Subcontract	\$1,113.00	\$1,014.00	\$750.00	\$2,877.00
Volunteers				
Travel / Mileage	\$503.00	\$635.00	\$632.00	\$1,770.00
Volunteer Recognition			\$3,000	\$3,000.00
Program Subtotal	\$59,631.00	\$57,085.00	\$54,884.00	\$171,600.00
ADMINISTRATION				
Salaries				
Benefits				
Other: Indirect	\$5,474.00	\$5,261.00	\$5,165.00	\$15,900.00
Administration Subtotal	\$5,474.00	\$5,261.00	\$5,165.00	\$15,900.00
GRAND TOTAL	\$65,105.00	\$62,346.00	\$60,049.00	\$187,500.00

*DRPA funds only

Budget Detail					
FY 2018-19 (July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019)					
Cost Categories		DRPA Grant	Inkind		Total
			Cash Non-Grant	Non-Cash Non-Grant	
PROGRAM	Operations Activities:				
	Salaries	\$170,417.00		\$54,774.00	\$225,191.00
	Benefits	\$41,549.00		\$15,146.00	\$56,695.00
	Facility Lease	\$13,092.00		\$87,300.00	\$100,392.00
	Staff Training			\$280.00	\$280.00
	Printing/Publications				
	Utilities				
	Meetings / Conferences	\$233.00			\$233.00
	Telephone	\$1,444.00			\$1,444.00
	Equipment (under \$5,000)				
	Equipment Lease	\$910.00			\$910.00
	Insurance	\$1,158.00			\$1,158.00
	Professional Memberships				
	Subscriptions				
	Postage				
	Office Supplies	\$2,459.00			\$2,459.00
	Consultant/Subcontract	\$2,080.00			\$2,080.00
	Volunteers			\$100,000.00	\$100,000.00
	Travel / Mileage	\$2,032.00			\$2,032.00
	Volunteer Recognition				
	Program Subtotal		\$235,364.00		\$257,500.00
ADMINISTRATIO	Administration *:				
	Salaries				
	Benefits				
	Other: Indirect	\$22,136.00			\$22,136.00
	Other				
	Administration Subtotal		\$22,136.00		\$22,136.00
	GRAND TOTAL		\$257,500.00		\$257,500.00
Percentage of Total		50%			

* Cannot exceed 10% of total requested funding

** A minimum of 50% of the total program is matched funding

* Expenditure Plan FY 2018-19 (July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019)					
Cost Categories	Qt 1	Qt 2	Qt 3	Qt 4	Total
	7/1/18 -	10/1/18-	1/1/19-	4/1/19-	
	9/30/18	12/31/18	3/31/19	6/30/19	
PROGRAM					
Salaries	\$42,767.00	\$43,373.00	\$41,566.00	\$42,711.00	\$170,417.00
Benefits	\$9,971.00	\$10,444.00	\$10,720.00	\$10,414.00	\$41,549.00
Facility Lease	\$3,281.00	\$3,287.00	\$3,274.00	\$3,250.00	\$13,092.00
Staff Training					
Printing/Publications					
Utilities					
Meetings / Conferences		\$207.00	\$16.00		\$223.00
Telephone	\$359.00	\$370.00	\$365.00	\$350.00	\$1,444.00
Equipment (under \$5,000)					
Equipment Lease	\$147.00	\$414.00	\$251.00	\$98.00	\$910.00
Insurance	\$303.00	\$297.00	\$283.00	\$275.00	\$1,158.00
Professional Memberships					
Subscriptions					
Postage					
Office Supplies	\$276.00	\$601.00	\$1,309.00	\$273.00	\$2,459.00
Consultant/Subcontract	\$540.00	\$579.00	\$562.00	\$399.00	\$2,080.00
Volunteers					
Travel / Mileage	\$579.00	\$176.00	\$960.00	\$317.00	\$2,032.00
Other:					
Program Subtotal	\$58,223.00	\$59,748.00	\$59,306.00	\$58,087.00	\$235,364.00
ADMINISTRATION					
Salaries					
Benefits					
Other: Indirect	\$5,480.00	\$5,610.00	\$5,582.00	\$5,464.00	\$22,136.00
Administration Subtotal	\$5,480.00	\$5,610.00	\$5,582.00	\$5,464.00	\$22,136.00
GRAND TOTAL	\$63,703.00	\$65,358.00	\$64,888.00	\$63,551.00	\$257,500.00

*DRPA funds only

Budget Detail FY 19-20 (July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020)					
Cost Categories		DRPA Grant	Inkind		Total
			Cash Non-Grant	Non-Cash Non-Grant	
PROGRAM	Operations Activities:				
	Salaries	167,854.00		\$109,321.00	\$277,175.00
	Benefits	\$44,327.00		\$24,104.00	\$68,431.00
	Facility Lease	15,377.00		\$71,575.00	\$86,952.00
	Staff Training	\$600.00			\$600.00
	Printing/Publications				
	Utilities	\$4,150.00			\$4,150.00
	Meetings / Conferences	\$2,500.00			\$2,500.00
	Telephone	\$2,840.00			\$2,840.00
	Equipment (under \$5,000)	\$1,500.00			\$1,500.00
	Equipment Lease	\$1,100.00			\$1,100.00
	Insurance	\$1,060.00			\$1,060.00
	Professional Memberships				
	Subscriptions				
	Postage				
	Office Supplies	\$3,724.00			\$3,724.00
	Consultant/Subcontract	\$3,311.00			\$3,311.00
	Volunteers			75,000.00	75,000.00
	Travel / Mileage	\$4,100.00			\$4,100.00
	Other: Volunteer Recognition	\$3,500.00			\$3,500.00
	Program Subtotal		\$255,943.00		\$280,000.00
ADMINISTRATION *	Administration *:				
	Salaries				
	Benefits				
	Other: Indirect	\$24,057.00			\$24,057.00
	Other:				
	Administration Subtotal	\$24,057.00			\$24,057.00
GRAND TOTAL		\$280,000.00		\$280,000.00	\$560,000.00
**Percentage of Grant Total		50%			

* Cannot exceed 10% of total requested funding

** A minimum of 50% of the total program is matched funding

* Expenditure Plan FY 2019-20 (July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020)					
Cost Categories	Qt 1	Qt 2	Qt 3	Qt 4	Total
	7/1/19 -	10/1/19-	1/1/20-	4/1/20-	
	9/30/19	12/31/19	3/31/20	6/30/20	
PROGRAM					
Salaries	\$45,875	\$40,361	\$40,678.00	\$40,940.00	\$167,854.00
Benefits	\$10,624	\$10,430	\$11,012.00	\$12,261.00	\$44,327.00
Facility Lease	\$3,695	\$3,636.00	\$3,900.00	\$4,146.00	\$15,377.00
Staff Training				\$600.00	\$600.00
Printing/Publications					
Utilities			\$1,350.00	\$2,800.00	\$4,150.00
Meetings / Conferences			\$1,000.00	\$1,500.00	\$2,500.00
Telephone	\$693.00	\$558.00	\$790.00	\$799.00	\$2,840.00
Equipment (under \$5,000)			\$1,500.00		\$1,500.00
Equipment Lease	\$187.00	\$264.00	\$349.00	\$300.00	\$1,100.00
Insurance	\$271.00	\$212.00	\$285.00	\$292.00	\$1,060.00
Professional Memberships					
Subscriptions					
Postage					
Office Supplies	\$556.00	\$717.00	\$1,150.00	\$1,301.00	\$3,724.00
Consultant/Subcontract	\$388.00	\$693.00	\$715.00	\$1,515.00	\$3,311.00
Volunteers					
Travel / Mileage	\$1,045.00	\$707.00	\$1,100.00	\$1,248.00	\$4,100.00
Other: Volunteer Recognition			\$1,750.00	\$1,750.00	\$3,500.00
Program Subtotal	\$63,334.00	\$57,578.00	\$65,579.00	\$69,452.00	\$255,943.00
ADMINISTRATION					
Salaries					
Benefits					
Other: Indirect	\$5,949.00	\$5,388.00	\$6,178.00	\$6,542.00	\$24,057.00
Administration Subtotal	\$5,949.00	\$5,388.00	\$6,178.00	\$6,542.00	\$24,057.00
GRAND TOTAL	\$69,283.00	\$62,966.00	\$71,757.00	\$75,994.00	\$280,000.00

*DRPA funds only

Budget Detail						
FY 2020-21 (July 1, 2020- June 30, 2021)						
Cost Categories		DRPA Grant	In-kind		Total	
			Cash Non-Grant	Non-Cash Non-Grant		
PROGRAM	Operations Activities:					
	Salaries	\$172,111.00		\$107,497.00	\$279,608.00	
	Benefits	\$43,698.00		\$21,378.00	\$65,076.00	
	Facility Lease and Operational Cost	\$15,950.00		\$62,500.00	\$78,450.00	
	Staff Training	\$600.00			\$600.00	
	Printing/Publications					
	Utilities	\$4,150.00			\$4,150.00	
	Meetings / Conferences	\$1,500.00			\$1,500.00	
	Telephone and Internet	\$3,160.00			\$3,160.00	
	Equipment (under \$5,000)					
	Equipment Lease	\$1,100.00			\$1,100.00	
	Insurance	\$1,357.00			\$1,357.00	
	Professional Memberships					
	Subscriptions					
	Postage					
	Office Supplies/Expenses	\$2,330.00			\$2,330.00	
	Consultant/Subcontract	\$3,440.00			\$3,440.00	
	Volunteers			\$88,625.00	\$88,625.00	
	Travel / Mileage	\$4,100.00			\$4,100.00	
	Other:Volunteer Recognition	\$2,500.00			\$2,500.00	
	Program Subtotal	\$255,996.00		\$280,000.00	\$535,996.00	
	ADMINISTRATION	Administration*:				
		Salaries				
Benefits						
Other: Indirect		\$24,004.00			\$24,004.00	
Other						
Other Subtotal						
Administration Subtotal		\$24,004.00			\$24,004.00	
GRAND TOTAL		\$280,000.00		\$280,000.00	\$560,000.00	
Percentage of Total*		8.57%				

* Cannot exceed 10% of total requested funding

* Expenditure Plan FY 2020-21 (July 1, 2020- June 30, 2021)					
Cost Categories	Qt 1	Qt 2	Qt 3	Qt 4	Total
	7/1/20 -	10/1/20 -	1/1/21 -	4/1/21 -	
	9/30/20	12/31/20	3/31/21	6/30/21	
PROGRAM					
Salaries	\$43,522.00	\$43,522.00	\$41,545.00	\$43,522.00	\$172,111.00
Benefits	\$10,551.00	\$10,503.00	\$10,526.00	\$12,118.00	\$43,698.00
Facility Lease and Operational Cost	\$3,980.00	\$3,980.00	\$3,980.00	\$4,010.00	\$15,950.00
Staff Training	\$150.00		\$150.00	\$300.00	\$600.00
Printing/Publications					
Utilities		\$1,350.00		\$2,800.00	\$4,150.00
Meetings / Conferences				\$1,500.00	\$1,500.00
Telephone and Internet	\$790.00	\$790.00	\$790.00	\$790.00	\$3,160.00
Equipment (under \$5,000)					
Equipment Lease	\$187.00	\$264.00	\$349.00	\$300.00	\$1,100.00
Insurance	\$322.00	\$345.00	\$345.00	\$345.00	\$1,357.00
Professional Memberships					
Subscriptions					
Postage					
Office Supplies/ Expenses	\$555.00	\$575.00	\$575.00	\$625.00	\$2,330.00
Consultant/Subcontract	\$675.00	\$675.00	\$675.00	\$1,415.00	\$3,440.00
Volunteers					
Travel / Mileage	\$1,045.00	\$707.00	\$1,100.00	\$1,248.00	\$4,100.00
Other: Volunteer Recognition		\$1250.00	\$600.00	\$650.00	\$2,500.00
Other:					
Program Subtotal	\$61,777.00	\$63,961.00	\$60,635.00	\$69,623.00	\$255,996.00
ADMINISTRATION					
Salaries					
Benefits					
Other: Indirect	\$5,780.00	\$5,998.00	\$5,666.00	\$6,560.00	\$24,004.00
Administration Subtotal	\$5,780.00	\$5,998.00	\$5,666.00	\$6,560.00	\$24,004.00
GRAND TOTAL	\$67,557.00	\$69,959.00	\$66,301.00	\$76,183.00	\$280,000.00

*DRPA funds only

**ATTACHMENT D-56**

**STAFFING PLAN—
Dispute Resolution Programs Act
FY ~~2017-2020~~2020-21**

FY 2017-2018* (October 1, 2017 — June 30, 2018)

Direct Services Program

Direct Services Program

	Classification/Title	FTE
<u>1</u>	<u>Program Director</u>	<u>0.05</u>
<u>42</u>	DRS Supervisor	0.56 aver age FTE for 9 mont hs 0.80
<u>23</u>	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	1.00 aver age FTE for 9 mont hs
<u>34</u>	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	0.56 aver age FTE for 9 mont hs 0.85
<u>45</u>	Volunteer Case Coordinator Assistant	1.00 aver age FTE for 9 mont hs 0.50
	TOTAL	3.12 aver age FTE for 9

		mon ths3. 20
--	--	-----------------------------

FY 2018-19 Direct Services Program		
	Classification/Title	FTE
1	DRS Supervisor	0.80 average FTE for 12 months
2	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	1.00 average FTE for 12 months
3	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	0.90 average FTE for 12 months
4	Volunteer Coordinator	1.00 average FTE for 12 months
TOTAL		3.70 average FTE for 12 months

FY 2019-20 Direct Services Program		
	Classification/Title	FTE
1	DRS Supervisor	0.80 average FTE for 12 months
2	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	1.00 average FTE for 12 months
3	Case Coordinator (Bilingual)	0.88 average FTE for 12 months
4	Volunteer Coordinator	0.25 average FTE for 12 months
5	Case Coordinator Assistant	0.25 average FTE for 12 months (position budgeted @ 50% FTE as of January 01, 2020)
TOTAL		3.18 average FTE for 12 months

**Contractor**

- A. **SUBRECIPIENT** will provide the following activities to 100% of referrals from the Orange County Courts and the Orange County Community:
1. Intake/Problem Assessment
 2. Information and Referrals
 3. Mediation Services (where applicable)
- B. ~~Contractor~~**SUBRECIPIENT** shall track and report the following activities generated from said referrals:
1. Referrals from the Orange County Courts
 2. Referrals from the Orange County Community
 3. Intake/Problem Assessment
 4. Information and Referrals
 5. Cases Opened
 6. Proceedings Initiated
 7. Cases Closed
 8. Cases Resolved
 9. Follow-up Surveys

Based on the average volume of referrals and cases over the past three years, ~~Contractor~~**SUBRECIPIENT** shall perform within the following ranges of service deliverables. However, there is no limit to the number of services provided under this contract and ~~Contractor~~**SUBRECIPIENT** may exceed the following metrics.

Services	Target Metrics
Intake/Problem Assessment	1,583 assessments
Cases Opened	1,250 – 2,083 cases
Proceedings Initiated	25 – 200 proceedings
Cases Closed	A minimum of 80% of cases opened
Cases Resolved	833 – 1,667 cases
Follow-up Surveys	A minimum of 1 completed survey from 75% of cases opened
Information and Referrals	A minimum of 179 annually
Public Education Presentations:	
— # of presentations	400 – 500 presentations
— # of attendees	12,500 – 20,833

Educational

<u>Services</u>	<u>Target Metrics</u>
<u>Intake/Problem Assessment</u>	<u>1,900 assessments</u>
<u>Cases Opened</u>	<u>1,600 cases</u>
<u>Proceedings Initiated</u>	<u>1,500 proceedings</u>
<u>Cases Closed</u>	<u>80% of cases opened (minimum)</u>
<u>Cases Resolved</u>	<u>850 1250 cases</u>
<u>Follow Up Surveys</u>	<u>1 completed survey from 75% of cases opened (minimum)</u>
<u>Information & Referrals</u>	<u>minimum 300 annually</u>
<u>Public Education Presentations:</u>	
<u>-# of presentations</u>	<u>300 - 400 presentations</u>
<u>-# of attendees</u>	<u>6,500 – 11,000</u>

- C. Public Education Workshops: ~~Contractor~~SUBRECIPIENT will conduct ~~8 presentations per program year~~the following number of workshops:

<u>Public Education Workshops</u>
<u>8 workshops</u>

D. Trainings:

- a. Training Sessions: ~~contractor~~SUBRECIPIENT shall conduct ~~two#~~ (2) training sessions in accordance with the DRPA rules and regulation and shall be held on a quarterly basis commencing in the second quarter of the program year [Article 7.471(a)].
- b. A total of ~~3620~~ trainees must complete one of the training sessions ~~during the program year and with~~ no less than ~~126~~ trainees per training session.

~~Contractor~~SUBRECIPIENT shall report the numbers of the above activities on a monthly basis utilizing report templates approved by the ~~County~~COUNTY.

Performance Standards - Definitions

- A. Intake/Problem Assessment** – Intake/Problem Assessment is the evaluation of information for the purpose of determining the appropriateness, feasibility, and need for dispute resolution services which are authorized and funded by the DRPA. Non-dispute related calls will not be recorded in any category.- This is the sum of Cases Opened (B) and Information and Referral (G).
- B. Cases Opened** - A case is opened when a party voluntarily agrees to submit a conflict to a dispute resolution service and gives the grantee permission to contact the other party/parties for the purpose of resolving the conflict through dispute resolution services. Cases are opened when it is determined to be appropriate for mediation/conciliation/ arbitration and one of the disputants, usually the initiator, agrees to proceed. -The initiator agrees to become involved in solving a problem, and gives permission or agrees to contact the 2nd party. -This is the point where the determination that there is a case to work on is made.- If a case is opened, it must ultimately be closed.
- C. Proceedings Initiated** – A proceeding is initiated when some or all of the disputants or parties from different sides of the dispute, actively participate by statement or practice and agree to participate in a dispute resolution process with the assistance of the grantee by mediation/conciliation/arbitration.
- ~~D. D.~~ Cases Closed** - Of the cases opened, the reported number of cases closed includes cases resolved through mediation/conciliation/arbitration (a), cases partially resolved (b), cases unresolved (c), and cases not initiated (d).
- a. Resolved** - A dispute is considered to be resolved if parties reach agreement on all of the issues of the dispute. Cases brought to a resolution wherein agreements are documented, and mediated agreements must be signed.
 - b. Partially Resolved** - A partial resolution is when parties reach agreement on one or more issues of the dispute. A partial resolution is counted in which an agreement or a Memorandum of Understanding is written. -Proof of a conciliation agreement and the mailing thereof, must be documented in the file.
 - c. Unresolved** - A case is considered to be unresolved if parties do not reach agreement on any of the issues of the dispute or do not choose to continue participation in the process.
 - d. Case Not Initiated** - A case is closed due to inaction (90 days or more).
 - e. Facilitation Completed** - Facilitation is completed when all documented sessions of a group are completed with the use of a facilitator or using neutral skills to defuse/ resolve an issue or issues of conflict.
- E. Resolved Cases** – The number of cases brought to a resolution wherein agreements are documented, and mediated agreements must be signed.

F. Follow-up Surveys – Follow-up Surveys are the tools used by the Grantees for the evaluating of parties who have used their services. –This is the number of survey responses received from the cases opened and proceedings initiated.- For all cases opened, there needs to be a minimum of one party to which follow-up survey statistics were attempted to be collected. -If the proceedings were initiated, follow-up surveys need to be attempted on all parties that are involved. -Results can be in the form of a mailing or a telephone interview, or a combination of both.

At a minimum, the surveys shall be conducted annually and must include the following:

1. The type of dispute resolution services provided by the Grantee;
2. The fairness or adequacy of the settlement or award;
3. Any particular difficulties experienced by the disputant in carrying out and obtaining compliance with the settlement agreement or award;
4. The disputant's willingness to use the Grantee's services in the future; and
5. The disputant's willingness to recommend the Grantee's services to others who are involved in disputes.

G. Information and/or Referral – Information and Referral involves a Grantee providing disputants with information and/or referral to the services of other agencies. –This can be provided when information is requested and grant related situation is not appropriate-__for mediation/conciliation/arbitration or when mediation/conciliation/arbitration services are not requested.

H. Public Education Presentations/Numbers of Attendees – Public Education of communities with regard to the availability and benefits of alternative dispute resolution process with the assistance of the grantee. –Statistics will also be collected on the number of attendees at presentations.

I. Training/Trainees – Number of Trainings and estimated number of trainees. This applies to formal DRPA basic training of 25 hours or more, as well as advanced training, as outlined in the DRPA Regulations.

CONTRACT DELIVERABLES

If ~~CONTRACTOR~~SUBRECIPIENT has agreed to provide dispute resolution services to as specified in the CONTRACT.
~~CONTRACTOR~~SUBRECIPIENT shall submit the following deliverables on the specified due dates:

Deliverable	Due Date
Statistical Data and Reports as required but not limited to: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> a. County<u>COUNTY</u> Statistical Reports (Monthly, Quarterly Encompassing to date number of all Performance Standard Categories and Including no. of Civil, Non-Civil, Community referrals b. DRPA Civil Mediation Services Reports c. Quarterly Demographic Reports d. Quarterly Follow-Up reports, following monthly surveys <u>d.</u> 	20 th of each month for prior month reporting and quarterly following 20 th day of last quarter month
Attendance and Participation at Monthly, Quarterly Meeting	As Scheduled
DRPA Civil Mediation Meetings	As Scheduled
List of updated Volunteer Lists	Quarterly following 20 th day of last quarter month
Calendar of Training events, Training Outlines	Quarterly following 20 th day of last Quarter month
Calendar of Outreach, Education, Community and other DRPA Events	August 20 th , January 20 th , or when available
Updated Organization Chart, and Program Staff	August 20 th , January 20 th , or when available
Invoices	20 th of each month
Monitoring Reports	As Requested
Printed Materials/Flyers (Training/Events) for approval prior to distribution	7 days prior to distribution
Other DRPA related reports, documents	As requested